United Nations Nations Unies UNRESTRTCTED

CONFggENCE CONFE{}ENCE 163/ ggﬁa%’ Cig ﬁglz,es

‘TRADE AND ’EMPLOYMENT | COMMERCE ET DE LEMPLO]  °Trd: TheLiss

EJLME 3 e 30 .20
7 7 7—

THTRD COMMITTEE: COMIRCIAL POLICY
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE TWENTY-STXTH MEETTHG
(COMMITT™E ITT B)

Held at the Capitol, Havana, Cuba,
on Tuesday, 6 January 19&8, at 3,00 p.m.

Chairman: Mr. L. D. WILGRESS (Canade)

SECTICN C ~ SUBSIDIES

GENERAL DIBCU“SIOF

Mr, RODRIGURZ (Prazil) expressed the view that exyort subsidies
congtituted a practice vhich was at least as harmful to international trade
as quantitative restrictions. They grve an abnormal stimulus to the
exports of one country at the expense of other countries producing :he same
- commodity, lhereby causing a disequilibrium in the balaﬁée of payments in
those countiies, To permit export subsidies‘would be the surest way of
destroying confidence‘in the Charter and of destroying friendlyrrelations
between nations, They vould counteract the favourable effect of tariff
reductions ani would accontuate the differences between countries in different
stages of econﬁmlc developnent, It would be illogical and unfair to permit
subgidics which would ruin the very branches of production, on which '
undér-developé&‘countries were being told to concentrate, No country liable
to Ee démamed.by exnort subsidies could retify a Charter vhich did not limit
them to the greatest extent possible. ' | |

, He was. ﬂxoo e to accynt the United States amendment fo Article 26, ag he
vfelt thlt its adorilion wonid result 10 “the coﬂd;flans vhich he had aLready
outlired but weloomed the Unid ed.StLteﬁ anendment to Ariicle 25, .

Mr, LLCRATE (#hilipplnes) Arew aitertion to the Iational Tice and Corn
COT@OTanOJ, shich hzd bewn crezned by the Philippine Covernment to a‘ttain
solf-suf;iclnﬂcy in the pro duct on of rice and to put an end to mODO“ullStlc
praytlces 1n the cistritution of rice, Rice vas the principal article of diet
and the most important proﬁuct of the Philiunﬁnes. By fixing the pwrchase
price of rice, the Corporauvon Had attemptea to make 1t remunerative to the

Amarg1n§lvpvoduo§r and at the same time falr to the consumer, In such a way,
/the violent




T/CONF.2/C.3/SR.26
Page 2

the violent fluctuations vhich occurred during the planting and the harvesting
of rice had been brought under control, In certain instances, the Corporation‘
had been forced to import rice from abroad and it had also entered the
distribution field so that people would benefit from the mass distribution
gcheme,

He wished to be informed if such action violated the terms of Section C,
Section D, or Chapter V. If such was the case, his delegation would submit
an amendment; any measure vhich attempted to meke a country self-sufficient
as regards its principal articis cf diet, was one which should be supported
wholeheartedly by ITO.

Mr, de VRIFS (Netherlands) explained that before the war, his
Government had established similar agencies to that referred to by the
Philippine representative, in the Netherlands and 1ln the Netherlands
Fagst Indies. The gquestion had been discuesed by the Preparatory Committee
and also by F40 in Geneva, which had come to the unanimous conclusion that
such stabiilzation schemes were acceptatle, provided that they did not harm
the economies of other ccuntries. Thsse schemes came under the terms of
Article 25 when they resulted in the attainment of almost or complete
gelf-gufficiency. They were not prohibited by Article 26, and he could not
agree with the Brazilian representative that they were more dangérous than
guantitative restrictions. If they seriously affected the economic 1life of
another country, that country would have the right to discuss the limitation
of the particular measures with the country which was applying then,

The Netherlands amendment to Article 27 would tover his Government's
system of subsidizing agriculture. At times this in fact represented an
inverted subsidy, since domestic prices were held at a level sometimes
above and gometimes below world market prices., The amendment provided
gafeguards agalnat gerious prejudice tb the interests of other Members.

Mr, FERRFRO (Peru) said his delegation supported the suggestion made by
the International Chember of Commerce that Articles 25 and 26 should be
reversed in sequence, Article 26 containing the gencral anti-subsidy rule
being placed ahead of Article 25, The delegation of Peru felt that export
subsidies should be condemned, as they might be used by highly industrialized
countriegs to the detrimént of undeveloped countries exporting primary
commodities and unable to afford measures of counter-subsidization. It could
not support the amendment suggested by the delegation of the United States of
America, as thisg would substantielly change the spirit of the Geneva text.

Mr, CAPLAN (United Kingdom) stated that Section C emphasized the
importance of Members avoiding action in their domestic fields of polilcy
which would have serious repercussions on the interests of other Members.

/This was




E/CONF.2/C.3/SR.25
Page 3

This was implicit in Article 75, .The amendment to the second sentence of
‘that Article by the delegati 1 of the United States of America was a ugeful one,
He agreed with the representative of Brazil regarding the importance of
Article 26 in relation to those tariff negotiations which had taken place and
vhich would be taking place in the future between Members; he felt that the
amendment suggested by the United States might carry with it much that would
nullify such negotlatlons. He referred to the statements of the

" representatives of the Philippines and of the Netherlands resgarding domestic
price stabllization schemes, and agreed with the latter that such schemes in
general woul!d tend to agsist international efforts to secure the moderation
of pronounced price fluctuations in world trade in major prirary commodities,
Paragraph 2 of Article 27 emplisized the close lin! which shuuld exist between
primary cofmodities throughout the Charter, and in particuler as between
primary products in relation to subsidies and in relation to Chapter VI.

The Charter should stimulate members of ITO to resolve problems regarding
primary products by means of mutual co-operation through commodity agreements
within the framework of the Chapter VI, He regretted the United States
proposal for a new paragraph as this would open the door to retaliatory
measures, He had some doubts regarding the amendment submitted by the
delegation of Venezuela.‘ He felt however that the scope and provisions of
paragraph 3 might be re-exa . ned &nd that the present draft should be taken
as a basis, Referring to the new article proposed by the delegation of
Ecuador, he thought that i1t would be somewhat out of place in Section C.

Mr. REISMAN (Canada) said that the Canadian delegation accepted the
Geneva draft of Article 27 which permitted the use of export subsidles in
limited cases, and felt that that A¥ticle provided an effective mechanism for
" obtaining release from the requirements of Article 26 when such escape was
Justified. Referring to the amendments submitted by the delegatlion of the
Unlted States of America, he said that his delegation shared the views of the
- delegation of the United Kingdom., He thought that the Sub-“ommittee should
" bear in mind the following escential principles:

(1) Article 25 contained a careful balance between the rights and
obligations of importing and those of exporting countries; this should be
maintained. It would be upset by the amendment to Article 28 suggested by
the delegation of the Unilted States of America.

(2) The exception provided for primary commoditles must be such that,
vhile due regard Wes paild to the special difficulties vhich they might
encounter, it should mot be so wide as to permit abuse,

(3) The exceptions for primary commodities should be so formulated as
to encourage and facilitate ‘hapter VI technique. h

(4) safeguards must be provided to ensure that export subsidies were not
‘ /used




E/Conr,2/C.3/sR.26
Page L

used as a means of expanding a Member's share of world exports beyond that
of a fair and representative period.

Mr. LECJYFR (France) considered that the prin-iples of Articles 25 and 2¢
should be maintained, and vie .d with misgivings t: > amendmw .t to Article 26
proposed by the delegation of the United States of America, This might bring
about a more dangerous situation than if the Articles were malntalned as at
present drafted. The French declegatlon must reserve ite position on the
United States amendments pending further explanation. '

Mr, DPASCOLI (Venezuela) regarded subsidies as prejudicial and dengerous
when used for dumping purposes or to stimulate production of exportable goods
difficult to place in foreign countries., In other cases, he saw no. objection
to their use., The Venezuelan amendments had been presented from that point
of view and he would Justif: them at the appropriaste time.

Mr, McCARTHY (Australia, said that subsidies divided themselves into two
main categories: those relating to secondary industries, and. those relating
to primary industries. These two groups could each be subdivided into
"production" subsidies and "export" subsidies.

In regard to manufactured goods, subsidles usually took the place of
tariffs, the subsidy depending on the cogst of production in relatlon to
the cogt of lmporting like goods., It was argued that this method had
greater merlt than the tariff method in that the cost came out of revenue
and was sub: ‘tted to regular scrutiny by the Government. He agreeod
that export subsidies called . r special saPeguard:, but sc - that in practice
it was hacrd to differentiate between export and producticon subsidies. It
wag essentlially a difference in technique, to which the Charter gave too
much weight, subsldles on exports being treated more stringently than those
on production, However, he did not see how this could be avoided. Primary
products were much more difficult to deal with., In trylng to assesstthe
meagure of protection to be glven to a country's own industries and products,
a varied and changlng international market had to be taken into
congideration, He pointed out that the subsidy requirements of an industry
would vary according to the +tages in ite development and cited Australla’s csa
in the production of rice. . roduction sybsidies might be useful in an
early stage but it was necessary to see that the production did not help
to glut the world market. The scheme described by the representative of the
Philippines would beem to be permitted, unless the lst sentence of
Article 27 (2) was read to cover all subsidies on a primary product. In that
cage the scheme would be brought under Article 26, If Article 27 was
intended only to cover export subsidies, the Netherland®s amendment would be
unnecessaxy as it was automatically covered by Article 25, but if Paragraph 2
covered sube’dles on all primary products, the amendment was understandable.
Without the interventlon of Governments the primar  product ~n price support

formula ¢ uld not be worked ovy, and therefore the remedy la, in
/Chapter




E/COMF,2,C.3/0%,26
Page 5

Chapter VI, Wigh prices must bo avoided at all nosts, in order to supply the
world's needs. The references to Article 26 contained‘in'Article 27 showld
be retained. ' ' ' .

The CHATRMAN proposed thet the Cormittes ghowld vroceed with the first
reading of the Articles, after which the various améndments end proposals
vould be further discussed by a Sub-Committee set up to consider the whole
cf Section C,. 4 ' ' |
2,. ARTICLE 25 - SUBSIDIES IN GENZRAL (FIRST READING)

Mr. ORTIZ-LAMATRID (Cuba) said the Cuban amendment vas bagsed on the
neceggity for an econcmic instrument which would permit the indirect

gsubgidizing of certain products in order to bring about indvstrial
diversification, Cuba was in no position at present to uge direct subsidies,
and could not renounce the only formula she possessed: ' exemption from taxes.
A further explanation would be given‘in the Sub-Committee,

It was agreed that the amenéments rroposed by the delegations of Cuba
and the United States of America and the suggestion of the International
Chomber of Commevce concerming Article 25 should be referred to the
Sub~Compltiee, |
3. ARTICLE 26: ADDITIONAL FRUVISIONS ON EXPORT SUBSIDITS ( FIRQTR‘@ADING)

Mr, ORTIZ-TAMADRID (Cuba) etated that his dﬂlegation s reservation,
shown in the Geneva text as applying to Article 26, in faét referred to
Article 25 and was dealt with by their amendment to that Article.

The CHATRMAN drew attention to the broposal of ‘ie International

Chamber of Commerce to transfer Article 28 to form part of Article 26,

It was agreed to refer both points to the proposed Sub-Committee.
Paragraph 1, ' ’

Mr, KENNEDY (United States of America) stated that he would defew
comment on his delegationt!s emendment until discussion of its regervation
on Articles 27 and 28, ‘ ‘

Tarograph 2 .

Mr, SAMLIN (Sweden) said thet, inasmuch as the preeenf wording of
paragraph 2 referred only to eveamption of expox rted productu from taxes
imposed on like products consumed domestlcally, hrs amendment proposed
to extend the exermption to taXes on raw materials and semi-manufactured
ariticles included in exported products, It should‘be_recognized that
many countriss had adopted such a system of exemptions.

v, BAHCAT (Tgypt) and Mr. BLUSZTAJN (Poland) supported the

fwedish amendment.

/Mr, de VRIES




I, 'coM,2/C,3/SR.26
Page 5

Vir, de VRIES (Netherlands) thought the substence of the amendme:t was
covered by the exiating “extb.

It was agreed to refer the i wedish amendment to the Sub-Committen,
Taracraoh 3 |

Mr, BRIGNOLI (ifrgentina) said that his amendment proposed the deletion
of the tiwme-limit set for eliminating subsidies. The brevity of the two-year
period was recognized by the provisien for postponeme: &, but the effective
date was uncertain and congideration should be given to the circumstances
each cbuntry.would face when the Charter came into force.

Mr, ROIRIGUEZ (Bravil) was already uneaay about paragraph 2 and
thought that the Argentine smendment made it worse,

It was agreed to refér the amendment to the Sub-Committee.
Propoged new Paragraph

—

bMir, DPASCOLI (Venezuela) exrialned that the Proposed new paragraph
ves intended to cover subsidies desirmed to avoid a counbryls dependence
upon one product, v ,

Until tne early part of the 20th Century, coffee and cocoa had been
Venezuela's chief exports. After 19C8 the export of oil had become of
pri-ary importance, . While this had strengthened the financiel position,
it yresented the diéadvantages of a decrease in sgricultural production and
lependency upon a single mineral, Moreover, a large proportion of the
profits from oil was returned to foreign investors, As a consequence
and. because of the devaluation of ths dollar in 19332, it was necessory, in
orxder to safeguard her external purchasing power, protect the employment
of one-third her population, and not devalue her currency, for Venezuela
to subsidize the production of coffse and cocca throws™ taxing oil.

It was not necessary to state how the subsidles were mllocsted and
granted, but the prrinciple was emphasized as being reasoneble, since it
was not disadvantageous to other countries, and should be acknowledged in

he Charter, ‘ ’

He stressed the fact that the Venezuelan system did hot increase
evports, nor did it affect world prices of coffee and cocoa, Also it was
an essential means of maintaining Tull employment.

Mr, BLUSZTAJN (Poland) said that the Venezuelen omendment was of
interest to a number of other countries in simflar circumstances who
vore obliged to maintain their present exchange rates in order to support
thelr external purchasing power. This involved differential exchange rates
for exports. The rules of the Internationzl Monetary Fund pérmitted
postr mement of the removal of such differentiel rates during a trancitional

/period.




E/CONF.2/C.3/8R.26
Page 7

perdod, He tlought that the substance of the Venezuslan amendment might be
covered by Arcicle b, but if this were not the case, he considered that
an amendment to Article 26 on the lines of that proposed by Venezuela was
desirable.

Mr, D'MSCOLI (Venezuela) expressed his appreciation of the Polish
delegate’s remarks, and emphasized that in his own statement he had tried
to make a clear distinction between the method of subsidization and the
principle involved.

Mr. McCARTHY (Australia) thought that if the type of éubsidy envisaged
by Venezuela were a subgidy on production, it would be covered by Article 25.
If', however, it were a subsidy on export, then it would be covered by
Article 26. It was mainly a matter of technique, and on this depended which
Article would apply.

Mr. CAPLAN (Uhited Kingdom) considered that Article 24 might be more
appropriate for consideration of the Venezuelan amendment.

Mr, D'ASCOLI (Venczuela) asked whether, if Venezuela were to remove
its differential exchange rates under the rules of the International
Monetary Fund, it would then be permitted to grant direct help to its
producers of coffee and cocoa in the form of subsidies on thelr exports,

Mr. RODRIGUEZ (Brazil) pointed out that export subsidies of this
kind were expressly prohibited under Article 206.

Mr. D!ASCOLI (Venezuela) agreed that this was the case, and explained
that this was the reason why hls delegation had submitted the amendment
under consideration.

Mr, de VRIES (Netherlands) thought that the present text of Section 'C!?
vent a considerable way to mest Venezuelals requirements, In particular,
Articles 26 (paragraph 3) and 27 would offer Venezuela an escape from the
anti-dumping provislons of Article 33.

Mr, MULLER (Chile) thought that Venezuela'’s problem of high export
costs was partly the result of their over-valued exchange rate.

Mr. D'ASCOLI (Venezuela) in reply stated that costs had risen
dragtically quite irrespective of the rate of exchange,

It vas agreed to refer the amenduent proposed by Venezuela to the
Sub~Commnittee, and to authorize the latter, if necessary, to enter 1lnto
congultation with any other Sub-Committee on the gquestion,

The meeting rose at 5.30 p.m,






